

#### UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

## VARSITY TRACK -- 1948

Compiled by Dick Nash, Director
Athletic News Service
University of Southern California
Los Angeles 7 (Phone RIchmond 4111)

--0--

CONTENTS	Page
Trojan Track Schedule, 1948	2
Dean Bartlett Cromwell	3
Past National A.A.U. Champions	4
Past National Collegiate Champions	5
Melvin E. Patton	6
Trojan Varsity Track Nucleus, 1948	7-9
Trojan Record in Past Championship Meets	10
Southern California Varsity Record	11
Trojan Relay Records	12
1913 and 1948 S.C. Record Comparisons	13
Los Angeles Coliseum Records	14
Trojan-U.C.L.A. Meet Records	15
Trojan-California Meet Records	16
Trojan-Stanford Meet Records	17
Trojan-L.A.A.C. Meet Records	18
Trojan-Occidental Meet Records	19
Pacific Coast Conference Meet Records	20
Other Records Held by Trojans	21
Troy Freshman Track Records	22

## # # #

(Cover picture: Dean B. Cromwell, S.C. coach and 1948 American Olympic track team coach, with Mel Patton, semi-official co-holder world record of 9.4s. for 100-yard dash)

# TROJAN TRACK SCHEDULE -- 1948

February	28	Occidental dual meet at Occidental
March	6	Arizona State dual meet at Tempe, Arizona
March	13	Long Beach Relays
March	27	Santa Barbara Relays
April	17	L.A.A.CPepperdine triangular meet
April	24	Stanford dual meet at Coliseum
May	1	California dual meet at Berkeley
May	8	U.C.L.A. dual meet at Coliseum
May	15	West Coast Relays at Fresno (night)
May	21	Coliseum Relays at Coliseum (night)
May	22	California Relays at Modesto (night)
May	29	Pacific Coast Conference meet at Coliseum
June	4	Compton Invitational at Compton (night)
June	12	Pasadena Games (site not announced - night)
June 18	-19	National Collegiates at Minneapolis
June	26	P.C.CBig Nine dual meet (site not announced)
July 3	- 4	National A.A.U. meet at Milwaukee
July	10	American Olympic Team trials at Evanston
July	28	Opening ceremonies, Olympic Games, London

DEAN BARTLETT CROMWELL, Age 68, Born Turner, Oregon, September 20, 1879.
All-around athlete at Occidental College; first employed at S.C., September, 1908.
Coached first Trojan track team in 1909 and has never coached elsewhere.
Unanimously chosen head coach, American Olympic Team, 1948.

Coached individual Olympic champion every Olympic Games since 1912:

1912-Stockholm-Fred Kelly, 110m. hurdles

1920-Antwerp-Charles Paddock, 100m. dash

1924-Paris-Clarence (Bud) Houser, shot put and discus throw

1928--Amsterdam--Clarence (Bud) Houser, discus throw

1932-Los Angeles-Duncan McNaughton (Canadian team), high jump

1936-Berlin-Kenneth Carpenter, discus throw Earle Meadows, pole vault

Cromwell's members of American Olympic teams:

1912-Fred Kelly, high hurdles

1920--Charles Paddock, sprints; George Schiller, 400m; Roy Evans, discus 1924--Clarence Houser, weights; Norm Anderson, weights; Charles Paddock, sprints; Morton Kaer, pentathlon; Otto Anderson, decathlon; Earle Wilson, hop-step-jump

1928-Clarence Houser, weights; Charles Paddock, sprints Lee Barnes, pole vault; Charles Borah, sprint relay; James Stewart, decathlon; Leighton Dye, high hurdles

1932-Frank Wykoff, sprint relay; Ed Ablowich, 1600m. relay; Dick Barber, broad jump; Bill Graber, pole vault; Bob Van Osdel, high jump;

1936-Frank Wykoff, 100m. and sprint relay; Foy Draper, sprint relay;
Hal Smallwood, 400m; Al Fitch, 1600 relay; Roy Staley, highs;
Bill Graber, pole vault; Earle Meadows, pole vault; Bill Sefton,
pole vault; Delos Thurber, high jump; Kenneth Carpenter, discus.

Championship teams:

Nine I-C-4-A championship teams (last seven times competed) until S.C. resigned membership in 1939.

Twelve NCAA championship teams (including nine in a row, 1935-43.)

34 individual NCAA champions (including ties),

40 individual IC4A champions (including ties and relay team)

39 individual national senior AAU champions (including ties)

-- 0 ---

World record holders, past and present:

100--Charles Paddock, Frank Wykoff and Mel Patton (latter unofficial) 220--Charles Paddock\*

440--Vic Williams (tie)

Highs--Fred Kelly, Phil Cope and Roy Staley (tie),

Lows-Norman Paul (tie)

Discus-Bud Houser

Pole vault-Lee Barnes, Bill Graber, Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows Teams in the 440, 880 and mile relay distances

(\*Paddock set number of world sprint records at odd distances; several of above also held records at metric distances)

## CROMWELL'S NATIONAL A.A.U. CHAMPIONS

- 1913--Fred Kelly, high hurdles, 16.4s.
- 1920--Charles Paddock, 220, 21.4s.
- 1921--Charles Paddock, 100, 9.6s., and 220, 21.8s.
- 1924-Charles Paddock, 100, 9.6s., and 220, 20.8s.
- 1925-Bud Houser, shot put, 50 ft. 1 in., and discus, 156 ft. 6 in.
- 1926-Charles Borah, 100, 9.8s.; Leighton Dye, high hurdles, 14.6s.; Kenneth Grumbles, low hurdles, 24s.; Bud Houser, discus, 153 ft.  $6\frac{1}{2}$  in.
- 1927-Charles Borah, 220, 21.6s.; Lee Barnes, pole vault, 13 ft.
- 1928—Charles Borah, 200 meters, 21.4s.; Lee Barnes, pole vault, 13 ft. 9 in.; Bud Houser, discus, 153 ft.  $6\frac{1}{4}$  in.
- 1929-Jess Mortensen, javelin, 204.975 ft.
- 1930--Vic Williams, 440, 48.4s.
- 1931-Frank Wykoff, 100, 9.5s.; Vic Williams, 440, 48.8s.; Jess Mortensen, decathlon, 8166.663 points.
- 1932-Bob Van Osdel, high jump (tie), 6 ft. 6 5/8 in.; Bill Graber, pole vault, 14 ft. 4 3/8 in.
- 1934-Bill Graber, pole vault, 13 ft. 11 3/8 in.
- 1935-Earle Meadows and Bill Sefton, pole vault (tie), 13 ft. 10 3/8 in.; Ken Carpenter, discus, 158 ft.  $11\frac{1}{2}$  in.
- 1936-Hal Smallwood, 400 meters, 47.3s; Ken Carpenter, discus, 166 ft. 2 in.
- 1937-Earle Meadows and Bill Sefton, pole vault (tie), 14 ft. 7 5/8 in.
- 1939-Erwin Miller, 400 meters, 48.3s.
- 1942--Cliff Bourland, 400 meters, 46.7s.; Walt Smith, 400 meter hurdles, 52s.
- 1943--Cliff Bourland, 400 meters, 47.7s.
- 1944--Earl Audet, shot put, 52 ft. 8 in.
- 1945-Roland Sink, 1500 meters, 3m. 58.4s.
- 1947--Walt Smith, 400 meter hurdles, 52.3s.

## CROMWELL'S NATIONAL COLLEGIATE CHAMPIONS

- 1923-Norm Anderson, shot put, 46 ft. 8 in.
- 1926-Bud Houser, discus, 148 ft. 11 3/4 in.
- 1929-Jess Mortensen, javelin, 203 ft. 7 3/4 in.
- 1930-Frank Wykoff, 100, 9.4s.; Jim Stewart, high jump, 6 ft. 3 3/4 in.
- 1931--Frank Wykoff, 100, 9.6s.; Vic Williams, 440, 48.3s.; Bill Graber, pole vault (tie), 13 ft. 10 5/16 in.; Bob Hall, shot put, 49 ft. 9 in., and discus, 152 ft. 7½ in.
- 1933--Duncan McNaughton, high jump (tie), 6 ft. 4 in.; Bill Graber, pole vault (tie), 13 ft. 11 1/16 in.
- 1934-Al Olson, broad jump, 25 ft.  $4\frac{1}{4}$  in.
- 1935-Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, pole vault (tie), 14 ft. 1 1/8 in.; Ken Carpenter, discus, 157 ft. 114 in.
- 1936-Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, pole vault (tie), 14 ft. 1 3/4 in.; Ken Carpenter, discus, 173 ft.
- 1937-Earl Vickery, low hurdles, 23.3s.; Bill Sefton, pole vault, 14 ft. 8 7/8 in.
- 1938-Louis Zamperini, mile, 4m. 8.3s; Loring Day, pole vault, 14 ft. 2 in.
- 1939—Erwin Miller, 440, 47.5s.; Louis Zamperini, mile, 4m. 13.6s.; John Wilson, high jump, 6 ft. 6 in.; Bob Peoples, javelin, 220 ft. 62 in.
- 1940-John Wilson, high jump (tie), 6 ft. 6 3/8 in.; Ken Dills, pole vault, 13 ft. 10 in.
- 1941--Hubert Kerns, 440, 46.6s.
- 1942--Cliff Bourland, 440, 48.2s.
- 1943--Cliff Bourland, 440, 48.5s.
- 1947-Mel Patton, 100, 9.7s.; Bob Hart, pole vault (tie), 14 ft.

#### MELVIN E. PATTON

Born: November 16, 1924, in Los Angeles
1947 National Collegiate Champion, 100 yards.
Co-holder American record, 9.45.; unofficial
world record holder.
Competing in 1948 as a junior.

- 0 -

#### 1947 record:

February 28, 1947-Los Angeles City College handicap meet, won 220, 21.9s.

March 8, 1947----Occidental dual meet, won 100, 9.7s.; won 220, 22.1s.

March 29, 1947----Compton College dual meet, won 100, 9.5s.; won 220, 20.7s. (new Trojan record)

April 5, 1947-----Riverside College handicap meet, won 100, 9.5s.; won 220, 20.4s. (new Trojan record)

April 19, 1947----L.A.A.C.-Pepperdine triangular meet, won 100, 9.6s.; won 220, 20.8s.

April 26, 1947----Stanford dual meet, won 100, 9.8s.; won 220, 21.2s.

May 3, 1947-----Illinois dual meet, won 100, 9.6s.; won 220, 20.4s. (tied own Trojan record)

May 10, 1947-----California dual meet, won 100, 9.6s.

May 17, 1947-----West Coast Relays, won 100, 9.5s.

May 23, 1947-----Coliseum Relays, won 100, 9.5s.; 220, 20.4s. (tied own Trojan record)

May 24, 1947-----California (Modesto) Relays, won 100, 9.4s. (tied world and Trojan record)

May 31, 1947------U.C.L.A. dual meet, won 100, 9.4s. (aided by wind)

June 13, 1947-----Pasadena Games, won 100 meters, 10.5s.; second in 220, won by Lloyd LaBeach in 20.8s.

June 20, 1947----N.C.A.A. championships, won 100 heat, 9.4s. (aided by wind)

June 21, 1947----N.C.A.A. championships, won 100 final, 9.7s.

(Anchor lap assignments on various sprint relay teams not noted)

100-yard dash: Won 14 (including one race at 100 meters) 220-yard dash: Won 8, second once.

## TROJAN VARSITY TRACK NUCLEUS, 1948

Sprints-Mel Patton, unofficial world record holder, 100 yards, 9.4s., university record-holder, 220 yards, 20.4s.; 1947 N.C.A.A. champion, 100 yards.

Bob Hager, ex-Fullerton J.C., best times of 9.8s., and 21.1s.

Orange Empira J.C. champion, 220 yards, 1947.

George Beaman, California Intercollegiates champion, at 100 yards in 1945 and Southern California Relays champion at 100 yards in 1946. Best times of 9.9s. and 21.9s.

Quarter-mile--Wells DeLoach, fourth in 1947 National Collegiates; fourth in 1947 National A.A.U. 400 meters. Best winning time of 48.7s.

(Timed in 47.9s. in N.C.A.A.).

Jim Slosson, formerly majored in 880. Capable of 49s.

Half-mile-Bob Chambers, unofficial co-holder national interscholastic record, 880 yards, lm. 54.4s. Holder university records for 440 and 880 yards of 48.2s. and lm. 54.5s.

Distances—Roland Sink, 1945 National A.A.U. 1500 meters champion, 1945;

Holder university freshman record, mile run, 4m. 17.7s.; third N.C.A.A.

two-mile, 1947; fourth N.C.A.A. mile, 1946. Best times of 4m. 15s.

and 9:14.9s. Won 1943 national junior A.A.U. 1500 meters title as

high school boy.

Carmen Bova, returning letterman.

John Cherry, returning letterman.

John Anderson, returning letterman 1944-45 majoring in 880.

High hurdles—Dick Attlesey, holder S.C.-Oxy meet record of 14.5s.

Lou Futrell, N.C.A.A. placewinner (for Fresno State) both

hurdle events, 1943, best time of 14.5s.

Henry Gabriel, national junior college champion, 1946, 14.8s.

Low hurdles-Ronald Frazier, national senior and junior A.A.U. champion, 1945; third N.C.A.A. low hurdles, 1947; holder university record, low hurdles, 23.1s.

Joe Scott, Southern California interscholastic champion, low hurdles, 1945, 23.7s.

Mile relay-DeLoach, Slosson, Chambers, Sink, Art Aiello, Dewey Vroom,
Boice Jacques.

Shot put-Bill Bayless, sixth in N.C.A.A. championships, 1947. 52 ft. 8 7/8 in.

Henry Springer, national junior college champion, 50 ft. 8 7/8 in.,

ex-Compton College.

<u>Jess Swope</u>, holder university freshman record, shot put, 48 ft. 5 in. Discus throw—<u>Ed Dittenbir</u>, national junior college champion, 1947,

137 ft. 5.1 in., from Visalia junior college.

Javelin throw-No top prospects.

High jump—Bill Wakefield, national junior A.A.U. champion, 1940, 6 ft. 5 in.

Tom Follis, tied for second national A.A.U., 1947; best winning mark of 6 ft. 6 in.

Broad jump--Edsel Curry, national junior A.A.U. champion, 1943, 24 ft. 3 in., second in 1943 N.C.A.A. championships.

Henry Aihara, N.C.A.A. champion (Illinois), 1945, best mark of 23 ft. 6 in.

Dick Fordham, ex-L.A. City College 1942, best mark of 24 ft. 81 in.

Pole vault—Bob Hart, tied for first, N.C.A. championships, 1947, 14 ft.;

holder university freshman record, 1946, 14 ft.

John Montgomery, national junior A.A.U. champion, 1947; best

performance of 14 ft.

\* \* \*

Chief losses from 1947 team:

Sprints-Jack Trout

Quarter-mile-Co-capt. Hubert Kerns

Half-mile-Field Berry and Wallace Wilson

Hurdles-Al Lawrence and Co-Capt. Walt Smith

Discus throw-Sylvester Heinberg

Javelin-Doug Miller, Paul Hummel and Paul Cleary

High jump-Jack Newman

Broad jump-Lawrence

Pole vault-Vernon Wolfe

# # #

## TROJAN RECORD IN PAST CHAMPIONSHIP MEETS

Year	N.C.A.A.*	P.C	. C .	I.C.4-	<u>A.</u>
1923 1924 1925	Eighth, 24			Sixth, First,	14 33
1926 1927 1928	First, 55	Second, Second, Fourth,	41 53 1/2 24	First, Fourth, Sixteenth,	35 1/2 23 6
1929 1930	Fourth, 32 First, 55 27/	#First, #First,	71 1/2 78 13/15	Second, First,	21 44 1/4
1931 1932	First, 77 1/7		93 85 1/6	First, First,	46 6/7 62 3/4
1933 1934	Second, 54 Second, 57 7/2	20		First,	47
1935 1936	First, 74 1/5 First, 104 1/3	#First,	68 5/6 53 1/4 55	First,	51
1937 1938 1939 1940 1941 1942	First, 64 First, 67 3/4 First, 86 First, 47 1/4 First, 81 1/2 First, 85 1/2 First, 46	First, First, First, First,	63 3/5 67 55 72 79	First, First, (resigned)	46 1/2 71 1/2
1943 1944 1945		#First, #First,	76 69		
1946 1947	Second, 42 7/2 Second, 34 1/6				

\*Present-scoring method utilized in N.C.A.A. results.

#California Intercollegiates meet.

Southern California has lost only three dual meets to college opponents since 1930 -- Stanford in 1933, California in 1943 and Cal-Tech in 1945.

# # #

How Trojans scored in 1947 National College meet, Salt Lake City

100-Mel Patton, first, 9.7s. (9.4s. in heat, aided by wind)
440-Wells DeLoach, fourth
Two-mile--Roland Sink, third
Low hurdles--Ronald Frazier, third
Shot put-Bill Bayless, sixth
Broad jump--Al Lawrence, fourth
Pole vault--Bob Hart, tied for first (six men) in pole vault

#### SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA VARSITY RECORDS

100--9.4s., Frank Wykoff, May 10, 1930, and June 7, 1930; Mel Patton, May 24, 1947

220-20.4s., Mel Patton, April 5, 1947, and May 3, 1947, and May 23, 1947

440-46.6s., Hubert Kerns, June 21, 1941

880-lm. 52.3s., Ross Bush, May 29, 1937

Mile-4m. 8.3s., Louis Zamperini, June 18, 1938

Two-mile--9m. 4.6s., Leroy Weed, May 2, 1942

High hurdles--14.1s., Roy Staley, June 13, 1936

Low hurdles-22.7s., Earl Vickery, April 22, 1939

Shot put-54 ft.  $4\frac{1}{2}$  in., Earl Audet, May 27, 1944

Discus--174 ft. 1 13/64 in., Ken Carpenter, August 17, 1936

Javelin--234 ft.  $3\frac{1}{2}$  in., Bob Peoples, May 17, 1941

High jump-6 ft. 9 3/8 in., John Wilson, April 27, 1940

Broad jump-25 ft. 8 7/8 in., Al Olson, June 22, 1935

Pole vault--14 ft. 11 in., Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, May 29, 1937

#### TROJAN RELAY RECORDS

- Four-man 440 relay-40.5s., Lee Lafond, Mickey Anderson, Payton Jordan, Adrian Talley, May 14, 1938 (world record).
- Four-man 880 relay-lm. 24.8s., James Abbott, Al Fitch, Charles Parsons,
  Foy Draper, June 1, 1934 (American record-betters world record)
- Four-man mile relay--3m. 9.4s., Warren Smith, Howard Upton, Cliff Bourland, Hubert Kerns, June 17, 1941 (equal to world record)
- Four-man two-mile relay--7m. 46.6s., Mike Portonova, Bob Finch, Ned Jensen, Phil Roulac, March 5, 1938
- 480-yard shuttle hurdle relay--59.7s., Leonard Anderson, John Biewener,
  Don Hommel, Art Kacewicz, June 7, 1940
- Distance medley relay (440, 880, 1320 mile) -- 10m. 3.3s., Erwin Miller, Art Reading, Bob Finch, Louis Zamperini, May 13, 1939

University of Southern California track and field records compared for 1913 and 1948, with extent of improvements noted:

Event	1913	1948	Improvement
100-yard dash	9.8 sec.	9.4 sec.	.4 sec.
220-yard dash	21.6 sec.	20.4 sec.	1.2 sec.
440-yard dash	51.6 sec.	46.6 sec.	5 sec.
880-yard run	2 min4 sec.	1 min. 52.3 sec.	8.1 sec.
Mile run	4 min. 32 sec.	4 min. 8.3 sec.	23.7 sec.
Two-mile run	10 min. 9 sec.	9 min. 4.6 sec.	1 min. 4.4 sec.
High hurdles	15 sec.	14.1 sec.	.9 sec.
111611 1141 4143			
Low hurdles	25 sec.	22.7 sec.	2.3 sec.
Low hurdles	25 sec.	22.7 sec.	2.3 sec.
Low hurdles Mile relay	25 sec. 3 min. 26 sec.	22.7 sec. 3 min. 9.4 sec.	2.3 sec. 16.6 sec.
Low hurdles Mile relay Pole vault	25 sec. 3 min. 26 sec. 12 ft. 6 in.	22.7 sec. 3 min. 9.4 sec. 14 ft. 11 in.	2.3 sec. 16.6 sec. 2 ft. 5 in.

Discus throw and javelin throw not on regular college track menu in 1913.

### LOS ANGELES COLISEUM RECORDS

100--9.5s., Charles Paddock. L.A.A.C., May 15, 1926; Frank Wykoff, S.C., May 16, 1931; Mel Patton, S.C., May 23, 1947

220-20.4s., Mel Patton, S.C., May 3, 1947, and May 23, 1947

440--46.9s., Lee Orr, Washington State, May 25, 1940; Cliff Bourland, S.C., May 23, 1942

880-lm. 51s., John Fulton, Olympic Club, May 25, 1946

Mile-4m. 8.9s., William Bonthron, Princeton, June 23, 1934

Two-mile--8m. 53.9s., Gunder Haegg, Sweden, July 10, 1943

High hurdles--14s., Bob Wright, Ohio State, May 24, 1941; Harrison Dillard, Bald.-Wall., May 23, 1947; Craig Dixon, U.C.L.A., June 13, 1947

Low hurdles--22.7s., Glen Hardin, La. State, June 23, 1934; Earl Vickery, S.C., April 22, 1939; Bill Porter, Northwestern, May 23, 1947

Shot put-55 ft. 10 3/8 in., Elmer Hackney, Kansas State, June 16, 1939

Discus-177 ft. 91 in., Bob Fitch, ex-Minnesota, June 13, 1947

Javelin-238 ft. 7 in., Matti Jarvinen, Finland, August 4, 1932

High jump-6 ft. 11 in., Les Steers, Oregon, June 17, 1941

Broad jump-25 ft. 5 3/4 in., Jesse Owens, Ohio State, June 15, 1935

Pole vault--15 ft., Cornelius Warmerdam, Olympic Club, May 24, 1941

Mile relay-3m. 9.4s., University of California team, June 17, 1941

First track meets held in Coliseum in 1924

## TROJAN-U.C.L.A. MEET RECORDS

100-9.7s., Mel Patton, S.C., 1946 (9.4s. aided by wind, 1947)

220-20.9s., Hubert Kerns, S.C., 1942

440-47.4s., Erwin Miller, S.C., 1939

880-lm. 54.5s., Frank Fletcher, U.C.L.A., 1947

Mile-4m. 15.3s., Roland Sink, S.C., 1946

Two-mile--9m. 12.8s., Louis Zamperini, S.C., 1939

High hurdles-14.3s., James Humphrey, S.C., 1939

Low hurdles-22.7s., Earl Vickery, S.C., 1939

Shot put-53 ft. 1 in., Jerry Shipkey, U.C.L.A., 1947

Discus--161 ft. 10 in., Kenneth Carpenter, S.C., 1935

Javelin-212 ft. 7 3/4 in., Bob Peoples, S.C., 1939

High jump--6 ft. 9 3/8 in., John Wilson, S.C., 1940

Broad jump-24 ft.  $11\frac{1}{2}$  in., Al Lawrence, S.C., 1946

Pole vault-14 ft. 7 in., Loring Day, S.C., 1938

Mile Relay-3m. 15s., S.C. teams of 1934 and 1942

Last year's score: S.C.  $81\frac{1}{2}$ , U.C.L.A.  $49\frac{1}{2}$ Series began in 1934; U.C.L.A. has never defeated S.C. in dual track.

#### TROJAN-CALIFORNIA MEET RECORDS

100-9.5s., Bob Kiesel, California, 1934

220-20.8s., Charles Paddock, S.C., 1921

440--47.3s., Cliff Bourland, S.C., 1942

880--lm. 53.2s., Louis Zamperini, S.C., 1939, and Warren Smith, S.C., 1941

Mile-4m. 13.7s., Louis Zamperini, 1938

Two-mile-9m, 21,2s., Leroy Weed, S.C., 1942

High hurdles-14.3s., Phil Cope, S.C., 1936

Low hurdles-23.2s., Earl Vickery, S.C., 1939, and Ron Frazier, S.C., 1947

Shot put-51 ft. 7 7/8 in., Earl Audet, S.C., 1945

Discus-163 ft. 84 in., Ken Carpenter, S.C., 1936

Javelin--229 ft. 4 in., Bob Peoples, S.C., 1941

High jump--6 ft. 6 3/8 in., John Wilson, S.C., 1940

Broad jump--24 ft.  $8\frac{1}{2}$  in., Guy Manuel, California, 1938

Pole vault--14 ft. 7 3/8 in., Bill Sefton, S.C., 1937

Mile relay-3m. 14.8s., S.C. team of 1942

Last year's score: S.C.  $77\frac{1}{2}$ , California,  $53\frac{1}{2}$ 

California last defeated S.C. in 1943 and previously to that had last defeated S.C. in 1924.

Series began in 1907.

### TROJAN-STANFORD MEET RECORDS

100-9.6s., Charles Paddock, S.C., 1921, and Hector Dyer, Stanford, 1930

220--20.9s., Foy Draper, S.C., 1934

440-47.1s., Ben Eastman, Stanford, 1932

880-lm. 53.5s., Ross Bush, S.C., 1935

Mile--4m. 11.5s., Paul Moore, Stanford, 1940

Two-mile--9m. 22.4s., Roland Sink, S.C., 1946

High hurdles-14.2s., Phil Cope, S.C., 1936

Low hurdles-23s., Norman Paul, S.C., 1933

Shot put--55 ft. 3 3/4 in., Stan Andersen, Stanford, 1940

Discus--165 ft. 1/2 in., Ken Carpenter, S.C., 1936

Javelin--229 ft., 7 in., Bob Peoples, S.C., 1941

High jump--6 ft. 8 in., John Wilson, S.C., 1940

Broad jump--24 ft. 11 in., Dick Barber, S.C., 1931

Pole vault--14 ft.  $8\frac{1}{2}$  in., Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, S.C., 1937

Mile relay--3m. 13.1s., S.C. team of 1942

Last year's score: S.C. 94 3/4, Stanford 36 1/4 Stanford last defeated S.C. in 1933 Series began in 1907

#### TROJAN-L. A. A. C. MEET RECORDS

100--9.6s., Frank Wykoff, S.C., 1930 and 1931; Mel Patton, S.C., 1947

220-20.8s., Mel Patton, S.C., 1947

440--47.8s., Roy Cochran, L.A.A.C., 1947

880-lm. 55.4s., Jack Burton, L.A.A.C., 1931

Mile--4m. 18.4s., Roland Sink, S.C., 1947

Two-mile--9m, 42s., Chesley Unruh, S.C., 1931

High hurdles-14.6s., Leighton Dye, S.C., 1926

Low hurdles-23.2s., Bob Maxwell, L.A.A.C., 1928

Shot put-52 ft. 4 in., Herman Brix, L.A.A.C., 1930

Discus-154 ft. 5 in., Clarence Houser, S.C., 1926

Javelin-213 ft.  $6\frac{1}{2}$  in., Jim DeMers, L.A.A.C., 1930

High jump--6 ft.  $7\frac{1}{4}$  in., Bob Van Osdel, S.C., 1930

Broad jump--24 ft.  $3\frac{1}{2}$  in., Dick Barber, S.C., 1931

Pole vault-13 ft. 6 in., Lee Barnes, S.C., 1927 and 1928; Jack Williams, S.C., 1927; Bill Graber, S.C., 1931; George Jefferson, L.A.A.C., 1931; Bob Hart, S.C., 1947; John Sanderson, S.C., 1947

Mile relay-3m. 15.8s., S.C. team of 1931

Last year's score: S.C. 101, L.A.A.C.  $30\frac{1}{2}$ , Pepperdine  $29\frac{1}{2}$  (triangular meet)

#### TROJAN-OCCIDENTAL MEET RECORDS

100-9.6s., Frank Wykoff, S.C., 1932

220--21s., Payton Jordan, S.C., 1938

440--49s., Bill Parker, Oxy, 1947

880--1m. 55.9s., Estel Johnson, S.C., 1935, and Paul Iacono, S.C., 1944

Mile--4m. 15s., Roland Sink, S.C., 1946

Two-mile--9m. 14.9s., Roland Sink, S.C., 1947

High hurdles-14.5s., Dick Attlesey, S.C., 1947

Low hurdles-23.8s., Norman Paul, S.C., 1933

Shot put--51 ft. 1/4 in., Earl Audet, S.C., 1944

Discus--147 ft. 6½ in., Phil Gaspar, S.C., 1938

Javelin--211 ft. 9 in., Bob Peoples, S.C., 1939

High jump--6 ft. 7 in., John Wilson, S.C., 1939

Broad jump-24 ft.  $2\frac{1}{2}$  in., Dick Barber, S.C., 1931

Pole vault-14 ft. 3 in., Loring Day, S.C., 1939

Mile relay-3m. 19.5s., S.C. team of 1947

Last year's score: S.C. 109, Oxy 27.

S.C.-Occidental dual track rivalry is Troy's oldest, dating back to before 1895; many meets in recent years have been held on handicap basis and all marks noted above are scratch performances.

## PACIFIC COAST CONFERENCE MEET RECORDS

100-9.6s., Clyde Jeffrey, Stanford, 1939, and Hal Davis, California, 1942

220-21s., Charles Borah, S.C., 1927, and Clyde Jeffrey, Stanford, 1939-40

440-46.4s., Grover Klemmer, California, 1941

880--lm. 51.7s., William Dale, Washington State, 1941

Mile-4m. 9.3s., Phil Leibowitz, Idaho, 1941

Two-mile--9m. 12.5s., Dixon Garner, Washington State, 1940

High hurdles--14.4s., Steve Anderson, Washington, 1928, and Sam Klopstock, Stanford, 1936

Low hurdles-23.3s., Earl Vickery, S.C., 1939, and Lee Orr, Washington State, 1940

Shot put-52 ft. 8 3/8 in., Stan Andersen, Stanford, 1940

Discus-170 ft. 10 5/8 in., Phil Levy (Fox), Stanford, 1936

Javelin-231 ft. 1 in., Bob Peoples, S.C., 1941

High jump-6 ft. 9 in., Les Steers, Oregon, 1941

Broad jump-25 ft., Jackie Robinson, U.C.L.A., 1940

Pole vault-14 ft. 11 in., Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, S.C., 1937

Mile relay-3m. 12.3s., Washington State team of 1937

Meet last held in 1942, won by S.C., 79; California second with 432.

First P.C.C. meet in 1919, revived annually through 1928, then revived in 1936 until discontinued because of war travel restrictions in 1943.

Southern California won meet consecutively, seven in row, 1936-42.

## OTHER RECORDS HELD BY TROJANS

## Pacific Coast Conference-Big Nine Meet:

Low hurdles-22.9s., Earl Vickery, 1938

Pole vault-14 ft. 6 in., Earle Meadows and Bill Sefton, 1937

## National Collegiate Championships:

100-9.4s., Frank Wykoff, 1930 (tie)

Mile-4m. 8.9s., Louis Zamperini, 1938

Pole vault-14 ft. 8 7/8 in., Bill Sefton, 1937

# I.C.A.A.A. Championships: (Trojan resigned membership, 1939)

100-9.6s., Frank Wykoff, 1931 (tie)

Mile-4m. 11.2s., Louis Zamperini, 1939

Low hurdles--22.8s., Earl Vickery, 1939

Javelin-223 ft. 1 1/4 in., Bob Peoples, 1939

Broad jump-25 ft.  $3\frac{1}{2}$  in., Dick Barber, 1931

# California Intercollegiates: (not held since 1945)

100--9.5s., Frank Wykoff, 1931 (tie)

220-20.8s., Frank Wykoff, 1931

880--lm. 55.4s., Vic Fitzmaurice, 1931

Mile--4m. 17.7s., Roland Sink, 1944

Low hurdles-23.4s., Ernest Payne, 1931

Shot put-51 ft.  $8\frac{1}{2}$  in., Earl Audet, 1944

Broad jump--25 ft. 7 3/4 in., Al Olson, 1935

Pole vault--13 ft. 10 5/8 in., Bill Graber, 1932 (tie)

## TROY FRESHMAN TRACK RECORDS

100-9.7s., Adrian Talley, April 2, 1935; Mel Patton, April 20, 1946, at 4.0.8.0 220-21.1s., Mel Patton, April 20, 1946, at 9. C. L.a. 440-48.2s., Bob Chambers, April 5, 1947, at Reverside J. C. 880--lm. 54.5s., Bob Chambers, March 29, 1947 Mile run-4 m. 17.7s., Roland Sink, May 13, 1944 Two-mile-9m. 28.2s., Louis Zamperini, June 19, 1937 High hurdles-14.4s., Al Lawrence, May 20, 1944 at Frence Kelay Low hurdles--23.1s., Ron Frazier, May 3, 1947 Shot put-48 ft. 5 in., Jess Swope, April 26, 1947 Discus--156 ft. 94 in., Coleman, March 6, 1937 Javelin-221 ft. 5 in., Bob Peoples, March 18, 1938 High jump-6ft. 5 in., Delos Thurber, March 5, 1935, and April 16, 1935 Broad jump--24 ft. 6 3/8 in., Dick Barber, April 27, 1929 Pole vault-14 ft., Bob Hart, June 5, 1946, at Compton Invitational Mile relay-3m. 23.1s., Team of Stan Megargee, Dick Rubin, Art Aiello and Bob Chambers, April 5, 1947 one art Borners, May 15 \$1,948, at Fresh Relays

# # # # #